MASTER AGREEMENT

Between the

CALHOUN INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF EDUCATION

and

CALHOUN INTERMEDIATE EMPLOYEE SUPPORT PERSONNEL ASSOCIATION, MEA/NEA

TABLE OF CONTENTS

				PAGE
Purpose and Intent				1
Article 1 -	Agreement			1
Article 2 -	Recognition			1-2
Article 3 -	Association Rights and Responsibilities			3-4
Article 4 -	Board Rights			4-5
Article 5 -	Special Conference Meetings			5-6
Article 6 -	Grievance Procedure			6-10
Article 7 -	Discharge and Disciplinary Action			10-11
Article 8 -	Seniority			12-14
Article 9 -	Layoff and Recall			14-15
Article 10 -	Vacancies			16-17
Article 11-	Leaves of Absence			17-26
Article 12 -	Wages			26
Article 13 -	Holidays			27
Article 14 -	Vacation			28
Article 15 -	Insurance			29-35
Article 16 -	Working Hours/Conditions			35-38
Article 17 –	Employee Evaluation			38-39
Article 18 -	Waiver			39-40
Article 19 -	Extent	and	Effect	of
Agreement		•••••		40
Article 20 -	Continuity of Operation			40-41
Article 21 -	Miscellaneous			41-42
Article 22 -	Appendices.	•••••		42
Article 23 -	Term of Agreement			42
Appendix A -	Wage Schedule			43-45
Appendix B -	Classifications			46
Appendix C -	CIESPA Grievance Form			47-50
Addendum, DKDC Classroom Coverage				51
Letter of Agreement, Assault by Students				
Letter of Agreement, Absenteeism				53
Index		•••••		54

PURPOSE AND INTENT

The purpose of this Agreement is to set forth terms and conditions of employment and to promote orderly and peaceful labor relations for the mutual interest of the DISTRICT, the employees and the ASSOCIATION.

The BOARD and the ASSOCIATION have entered into and completed good faith negotiations and have reached agreement upon wages, hours and other terms and conditions of employment.

The BOARD and the ASSOCIATION do hereby set forth and memorialize this their full Agreement.

The BOARD and the ASSOCIATION agree to abide by the terms and provisions set forth herein for the duration of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 1 AGREEMENT

This Agreement entered into this 1st day of July, 2021 (or date of ratification, whichever is later), between the Calhoun Intermediate School District Board of Education (hereinafter referred to as the "EMPLOYER, BOARD and/or DISTRICT") and CALHOUN INTERMEDIATE EMPLOYEE SUPPORT PERSONNEL ASSOCIATION/MEA-NEA (hereinafter referred to as the "ASSOCIATION").

ARTICLE 2 RECOGNITION

A. Pursuant to and in accordance with all applicable provisions of Act 379 of the Public Acts of 1965, as amended, and in accordance with the Certification of Representative in MERC cases R93 A-13 AND R93 F-123, the Board does hereby recognize the Association as the exclusive representative for the purpose of collective bargaining for the term of this Agreement for all employees of the Employer included in the bargaining unit described below:

ALL FULL-TIME AND PART-TIME TEACHER ASSISTANTS, AIDES/PARAPROFESSIONALS, SCHOOL NURSES (LPN), PHYSICAL THERAPY ASSISTANTS, OCCUPATIONAL THERAPY ASSISTANTS, JOB COACHES AND COMPUTER LAB ASSISTANTS (hereinafter referred to as "Employees" or "Bargaining Unit Members").

Excluding substitutes, supervisors and all other employees.

- B. Substitutes are not part of the bargaining unit. Substitutes may be used during posting periods and for leaves up to ninety (90) workdays.
- C. "Temporary" employees are those who fill a regular bargaining unit position while the regular employee is on an approved leave of absence of ninety (90) workdays or longer and/or are employed when there is a special student need.

"Temporary" employees' coverage under this Agreement is limited as follows:

- 1. From initial day of employment as a temporary employee, coverage is limited to wages. Wages will be at the initial step of the appropriate scale in Appendix A.
- 2. After ninety (90) consecutive workdays of temporary employment they will have access to the use of the first three steps of the grievance procedure.
- 3. After one hundred-eighty (180) consecutive working days a temporary employee shall be considered the incumbent of their assignment (except where the temporary assignment involves substituting for an absent regular bargaining unit member). In these circumstances, the job need not be posted. Persons so employed will be placed on the next step of the appropriate salary scale in Appendix A, will become seniority employees, and will be covered by all provisions of this Agreement.
- 4. At any time a temporary employee becomes a regular employee, he/she shall have seniority from most recent date of hire, inclusive of periods of continuous service as a temporary employee. When a temporary employee becomes a regular employee, the Employer shall notify the Association of the date on which that individual began their most recent temporary assignment.
- 5. Temporary employees may have their employment discontinued, at the sole discretion of the Board, any time during the temporary employment period.

ARTICLE 3 ASSOCIATION RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

- A. The Association is encouraged to make its views known to the Board relative to personnel policies.
 - Employees are encouraged to participate in a free and open exchange of ideas and opinions without fear of any form of reprisal.
- B. Upon request, the Board shall provide to the Association official financial reports, official meeting minutes and agendas, as well as payroll, wage and benefit data pertaining to bargaining unit members. Under normal circumstances, this information will be provided within ten (10) business days from receipt of a written request from the Association. If there is to be a charge for this information, the amount of the charges will be made known to the Association prior to processing the information request.
- C. The Board shall insure that each newly appointed employee receives sufficient information to acquaint him/her with the operations of the department to which the employee is assigned. Employees shall also be advised as to employee benefits and responsibilities and Board of Education policies, and such other appropriate information as they may need or request. The latter requirement shall have been satisfied by the Board supplying each employee with a copy of this Agreement, by posting Board policies on the CISD web site, and by distribution of an employee handbook.
- D. The Association shall be credited with five (5) days each year to be used by officers or representatives of the Association with such use to benefit all Bargaining Unit Members, the choice of activities which benefit all members is at the discretion of the Association. The Association agrees to notify the Board no less than forty-eight (48) hours in advance. The Association further agrees that such days shall not be used to support or to participate in any strike or other illegal activity. Should a substitute be necessary, the Association agrees to pay for the cost of the substitute and, if a substitute cannot be obtained, the Superintendent (or designee) may deny the absence.
- E. The Association shall advise the Board, in writing, of the names of all Association Representatives (and their alternates) and officers within ten (10) days of their election or appointment. The Board shall not be required to recognize or deal with any employee as a representative of the Association other than those designated in the manner described above.

- F. The Association may designate alternate Representative(s) who will represent employees only in the absence of a regular Representative.
- G. Association Representatives shall represent the bargaining unit members and shall be authorized to resolve grievances and other matters on behalf of such bargaining unit members in any step of the grievance procedure provided herein. Any grievances and matters resolved with the Board or its representatives shall be final and binding upon the employees, the Association and the Board.
- H. All grievance procedures and grievance investigations by the Association will be conducted during times which do not interfere with the employees' assigned duties. It is understood and agreed that if at any time, and by mutual agreement with the Board, such procedures are handled within the time of normal assigned duties, the employees involved shall suffer no loss of pay.
- I. Within two (2) weeks after a full-time bargaining unit member is hired, the Employer agrees to notify the Association President (or his/her designee) of the name of the new employee, his/her assignment, and the employee's date of hire into the bargaining unit.

ARTICLE 4 BOARD RIGHTS

- A. Nothing contained herein shall be considered to deny or restrict the Board of its rights, responsibilities and authority under the Michigan Revised School Code, or any other laws or regulations. Except as specifically stated by this Agreement, all the rights, powers and authority the Board had prior to this Agreement are retained by the Board. Such rights shall include, by way of illustration and not by way of limitation, the right to:
 - 1. Manage and control its programs, services, equipment, facilities and its operations and to direct the working forces and affairs of the Intermediate School District.
 - 2. Continue its rights of assignment and direction of personnel, determine the number of personnel (including the right not to fill open positions for the purpose of attrition) and scheduling of all the foregoing, and the right to establish, modify or change any work or school hours or days.
 - 3. The right to direct the working forces, including the right to hire, promote, suspend and discharge employees, transfer employees,

- assign work or duties to employees, determine the size of the work force and to lay off employees.
- 4. Adopt reasonable rules and regulations and to define job content and position descriptions.
- 5. Determine the qualifications of employees, including the essential job functions of employees.
- 6. Determine the extent and existence of educational programming and operation including the establishment or relocation of programs, buildings, departments, divisions or subdivisions thereof and the relocation or closing of programs, departments, divisions or subdivisions, buildings, other facilities, services or third party service contracts.
- 7. Determine the financial policies, including all accounting procedures and recordkeeping requirements.
- 8. Determine policies affecting the selection, testing or training of employees.
- 9. To establish courses of instruction and in-service training programs for employees and to require attendance at any workshop, conference, etc. by employees, including special programs.
- B. The exercise of the foregoing powers, rights, duties, and responsibilities by the Board and the adoption of policies, rules, regulations and practices in the furtherance thereof, shall be the exclusive prerogative of the Board except as otherwise limited by express provision of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 5 SPECIAL CONFERENCE MEETINGS

A. Special meetings between the Association and the Board may be called by mutual agreement for the purpose of discussing important matters. Normally the arrangements for the special meetings will be made between the Association President and the Superintendent or designee. Such arrangements will include an agenda, a specified time and place for the meeting, and the names of the persons to be invited. If there is agreement to hold the meeting during regular working hours, employees participating shall not suffer a loss of pay for the time spent in attending the meeting.

ARTICLE 6 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

- A. A grievance shall be defined as any dispute regarding the meaning, interpretation or application of the express terms and provisions of this Agreement. Employees are encouraged to seek informal resolution of their grievances prior to use of the procedure outlined in this Article.
- B. Written submission of a grievance must contain the following information:
 - 1. A statement of the facts on which the grievance is based.
 - 2. The time of occurrence.
 - 3. The specific section(s) of the contract which allegedly has been violated.
 - 4. Signed by the employee filing the grievance.
 - 5. The relief or remedy requested.
 - 6. If at Step 2 or 3, must have attached copies of grievances as submitted at previous steps and responses.

C. STEP 1: IMMEDIATE SUPERVISOR

An employee having a grievance shall present it in writing within seven (7) working days of the occurrence to the immediate supervisor, in person.

- a. The supervisor shall sign and date the grievance and return a copy to the employee.
- b. The supervisor and employee shall discuss the grievance and shall share information necessary to promote resolution of the grievance. The Association will be notified and may have a representative present.
- c. The immediate supervisor shall answer the grievance in writing within seven (7) working days following receipt and provide the Association with a copy.

STEP 2: SUPERINTENDENT

If the grievance remains unsettled following implementation of Step 1, it may be presented in writing to the Superintendent of the Calhoun

Intermediate School District (or a designated representative) within seven (7) working days after the Step 1 response is received.

- a. The Superintendent or designated representative shall sign, date and return to the employee a copy of the grievance submitted.
- b. The Superintendent or designated representative may discuss the grievance with the employee. The Association will be notified and may have a representative present.
- c. The Superintendent or designated representative shall respond in writing to the employee within seven (7) working days following receipt of the grievance and provide the Association with a copy.

STEP 3: BOARD OF EDUCATION

If the grievance remains unsettled following implementation of Step 2, it may be presented in writing to the Secretary of the Board of Education within seven (7) working days after the Step 2 response is received.

- a. The Secretary of the Board shall acknowledge receipt by signing, dating, and returning to the employee a copy of the grievance submitted.
- b. The Secretary of the Board of Education shall place the matter on the agenda for the next regularly scheduled Board meeting provided the grievance is received no later than five (5) working days prior to the scheduled meeting date and shall notify the employee and the Association of the scheduled date.
- c. The Secretary of the Board will respond in writing within seven (7) working days following the Board meeting.

STEP 4: ARBITRATION

Only the Association shall have the right to process or appeal a complaint to Arbitration.

a. If the Association is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at Step 3, it may within ten (10) working days after receipt of the decision of the Board refer the matter to arbitration by filing a written demand upon both the American

Arbitration Association and the Board within the above interval.

- b. Neither party may raise a new defense or ground during the arbitration proceeding which has not been previously disclosed to the other party. Any evidence not disclosed at the Board level must be revealed, in writing, to the opposite party not later than five (5) working days prior to the Arbitration proceeding.
- c. The powers of the Arbitrator are subject to the following limitations:
 - (1) He/she shall have no power to add to, subtract from, disregard, alter or modify any of the terms of this Agreement. His/her power shall be limited to determining the rights of the parties under this Agreement.
 - (2) He/she shall have no power to establish salary scales or to change any salary, but may correct salary errors.
 - (3) He/she shall have no power to rule upon the termination of services of or failure to re-employ any probationary employee.
 - (4) He/she shall have no power to change any practice, policy, or rule of the Board nor to substitute his/her judgment for that of the Board as to the reasonableness of any such practice, policy, rule, or any action taken by the Board provided that the same are not in conflict with the express provisions of this Agreement.
 - (5) He/she shall have no power to decide claims for which there is another remedial procedure or forum established by law or by regulation having the force of law.
 - (6) He/she shall have no power to rule upon the content of an employee evaluation. However, matters involving alleged violations of evaluation procedure shall be subject to arbitration.
 - (7) He/she shall have no power to rule upon any contract provision which is contrary to state or federal law, and any such provision shall be deemed null and void.

- d. More than one grievance may not be considered by the Arbitrator at the same time except upon the express written mutual consent of the parties. The cost of the Arbitrator shall be borne equally by the parties except each party shall assume its own cost for representation including any expense of witnesses.
- e. The arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with the Rules of the American Arbitration Association, so long as those do not conflict with the terms of this Agreement.
- f. The Opinion and Award of the Arbitrator shall be binding upon the Association, Board and employee(s).

D. General Procedures

- 1. The Board shall not be required to pay back wages more than thirty (30) days prior to the date a written grievance is filed.
 - (a) All claims for back wages shall be limited to the amount of wages that the employee would otherwise have earned or could have reasonably earned less any compensation that he/she may have received from any source during the period of back pay.
 - (b) No decision in any one case shall require a retroactive wage adjustment in any other case.
- 2. All preparation, filing, presentation or consideration of grievances shall be held at times other than when an employee or participating Association Representative is to be at his/her assigned duty station, except as otherwise mutually agreed to the contrary between the Board and the Association.
- 3. Notwithstanding the expiration of this Agreement, any grievance arising during the term of this Agreement (as defined in the duration clause) may be processed through the Grievance Procedure until resolution. It is understood by the parties that no grievance shall be filed or based upon any prior or previous Agreement or upon an alleged circumstance occurring prior to the effective date of this Agreement. Further, grievances filed after the expiration of this Agreement shall not be processed beyond the Board level (Step 3) under these procedures unless otherwise specifically agreed in writing by both the Board and the Association.

4. A "work day" shall be defined as any day when the central administrative offices of the ISD are open. Time limits may be extended only upon mutual written agreement of the parties.

ARTICLE 7 DISCHARGE AND DISCIPLINARY ACTION

- A. Any employee who fails to maintain proper standards of conduct or to discharge his/her responsibilities shall be subject to such disciplinary action as the Board shall determine, consistent with the provisions of this Agreement.
- B. No seniority employee (i.e. a bargaining unit member who has completed his/her probationary period under this Agreement) shall be disciplined or discharged without just cause. The Board will provide a discharged employee and the Association a notice of discharge with reasons therefore, in writing, at or prior to the time of discharge.

Should a seniority employee believe he/she has been unjustly discharged or disciplined, he/she may submit a grievance at the Step 2 level. Appeal to Step 3 in disciplinary matters involving seniority employees is limited to discharge and discipline involving loss of pay.

The Board and the Association agree to the concept of progressive and corrective discipline for seniority employees. This means that the degree of discipline imposed should involve consideration of the nature and severity of the offense, the employee's record, and other mitigating or aggravating factors. The parties further recognize and agree that progressive discipline does not require adherence to a rigid sequence of disciplinary measures, but rather that the factors enumerated above be considered before the Board determines what disciplinary penalty is appropriate in a particular case.

- C. Disciplinary action shall include: verbal warnings, written warnings, written reprimands, suspension, and dismissal. All disciplinary action shall be confirmed in writing, under the signature of the administrator issuing the disciplinary action, and shall be incorporated in the employee's personnel file. The employee who is the subject of the disciplinary action shall sign for receipt of the disciplinary document and shall be given a copy of same.
- D. A bargaining unit member who wishes to take exception to a disciplinary action must respond in writing within ten (10) work days of the issuance of the disputed disciplinary action. Such response shall be placed in the bargaining unit member's personnel file as an attachment to the

disciplinary action. This right exists independently of the Grievance Procedure contained in this Agreement.

- E. The following procedures shall be observed in the context of disciplinary action:
 - 1. Oral or written notice will be given to the employee of the charges, circumstances, or complaint(s) which may result in disciplinary action.
 - 2. The employee will be given an explanation of the evidence discovered through investigation regarding the basis for the contemplated disciplinary action.
 - 3. The employee shall respond to each charge or complaint under investigation and shall cooperate with the investigating administrator(s) regarding the furnishing of information necessary for completion of the investigation.
 - 4. The employee will be informed of the investigation results and what, if any, discipline will be imposed.
- F. The employee has the right to have a representative of the Association present at any meeting at which the employee is to be disciplined, provided that the meeting need not be delayed for an unreasonable time pending the arrival of such representative, and in no event shall the Board be restricted from taking such protective action as the Board may determine to be necessary to secure the rights of students and others pending the holding of the meeting.

ARTICLE 8 SENIORITY

A. "Seniority" shall be defined as the length of a bargaining unit member's continuous and uninterrupted employment in the respective seniority classifications of this bargaining unit from the employee's initial date of hire in such classification(s).

Time spent on layoff or unpaid leave of absence shall not accumulate as service time for seniority purposes. However, accrued seniority shall be retained, subject to ¶ G of this Article, when a bargaining unit member is on layoff or unpaid leave of absence status. Seniority shall be credited for periods of unpaid leave of absence taken prior to July 1, 1991.

Seniority may be exercised only within the classification in which it is accumulated. Movement from one classification to another shall not terminate seniority that the employee has previously accumulated in any other classification under this Agreement, provided there has not been a break in continuous employment. However, seniority in the employee's previous classification shall not continue to accrue when movement is made to a new classification.

B. All new employees, except temporary employees and substitutes, shall be probationary employees for the first ninety (90) work days of employment. Probationary employees who are absent on scheduled work days shall work additional days equal to the number of days absent, and such employees shall not have completed their probationary period until these additional days have been worked.

In the event a temporary employee (who is not substituting for an absent regular bargaining unit member) works in excess of one hundred-eighty (180) consecutive working days, he/she shall be considered as having completed his/her probationary period (in the classification in which the work was performed) if hired as a regular employee at the completion of their temporary assignment.

During the probationary period the employee shall have no seniority status and may be laid off or have employment terminated at the sole discretion of the Board.

- C. Upon satisfactory completion of the probationary period the employee's name shall be entered on the seniority list as of the most recent date of hire, inclusive of the probationary period.
- D. The Board shall prepare and maintain a seniority roster showing the length of service of each bargaining unit member within the respective seniority classification(s). The roster shall contain the employee's name, classification(s) and date of hire in that classification, and, if applicable, date of leaving that classification to enter another classification under this Agreement. A copy of the list shall be furnished to the Association President not later than October 1 annually. If no objections are received within twenty (20) days thereafter as to the accuracy of the seniority list, the Board's list shall be regarded as conclusive. In the event more than one bargaining unit member has the same length of service in a seniority classification, seniority placement on the list shall be determined by alphabetical order using the last names of the involved employees.
- E. Seniority under this Agreement shall be on a classification basis.

The seniority classifications of this bargaining unit are as follows:

- 1. Teacher Assistant.
- 2. Physical Therapy Assistant.
- 3. Occupational Therapy Assistant.
- 4. Computer Lab Assistant (Starr).
- 5. LPN/Health Care Nurse.
- 6. Job Coach
- F. The Association Representatives who perform steward-like duties and whose duties directly involve contract administration shall head the seniority list, for purposes of layoff and recall only, in their respective seniority classifications during their term of office, provided that they can perform satisfactorily the work available.
- G. Employees shall lose seniority for any one or more of the following reasons:
 - 1. Resignation, quitting or retirement.
 - 2. Discharge, in accordance with the standards and procedures set forth in Article 7 of this Agreement.
 - 3. If the employee is absent for 3 or more consecutive days without notifying their supervisor of the reason for such absence, or if such absence is unapproved.
 - 4. Failure to return to work when recalled from layoff or after a leave of absence. Failure to return within five (5) consecutive working days following receipt of notification of recall by certified mail or after conclusion of leave shall be considered failure to return from layoff or leave of absence.
 - 5. Layoff for twelve (12) or more consecutive months.
 - 6. Leave of absence exceeding twelve (12) months.
 - 7. Accepting assignment with the Calhoun ISD to a position outside the bargaining unit, after holding that position for sixty (60) calendar days. This shall not apply to summer employment.

The enumeration of the above conditions for loss of seniority shall not constitute a limitation upon the right of the Board to impose disciplinary measures (including discharge) for violation of the Board's rules and policies which are not in conflict with the express terms of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 9 LAYOFF AND RECALL

- A. "Layoff" shall be defined as a determination by the Board to effectuate a reduction in the work force, which reduction is implemented either by discontinuing the employment of a designated number of positions and/or through a reduction in the hours assigned to positions within the bargaining unit. The Board reserves the right to select the job classification(s), department, or program(s) in which the reduction(s) shall take place.
- B. Bargaining unit members to be laid off will be provided ten (10) work days' notice of lay off prior to the effective date of the reduction. This notice will be in writing and the Association President will be furnished a copy.
- C. In the event of a layoff, the Board shall identify the specific position(s) to be eliminated or reduced and shall notify the employee(s) in those positions. Employees in the seniority classification shall be reduced in order of least seniority within the seniority classification being reduced, provided that there are more senior employees within the seniority classification remaining who possess the ability and certification required to perform the assignments vacated by the least senior employee(s) in the classification.
- D. Seniority shall be applicable as a factor along with certification and ability in layoffs and recalls.
 - 1. "Seniority" shall be as defined in Article 8 of this Agreement.
 - 2. "Certification" shall be defined as possession of a valid license, approval, and/or certificate issued by the Michigan Department of Education (or other regulatory authority) where these credentials are necessary to occupy a particular assignment and meeting all standards of the Michigan Department of Education (or other state or federal regulatory authority) required for a particular assignment.

- 3. "Ability" shall be defined as capacity to successfully provide service to students (including consideration of evaluations) and meeting job qualifications for a position.
- E. The Board shall recall employees from layoff according to seniority within the classification(s) of the vacant assignment(s), provided that the recalled employee is presently certified and able (at the time of recall) to perform the available work. There shall be no obligation under this Agreement to post a vacancy where there are bargaining unit members on lay off who are properly classified, certified and able to fill the vacancy.
- F. Notices of recall shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the bargaining unit member's last known address as shown on the Board's records. It shall be the employee's responsibility to keep the Board notified of his/her current mailing address. The recall notice shall state the time and date on which the employee is to report to work. A recalled employee shall be given five (5) work days from receipt of a recall notice to report to work.

The Board may fill the open position on a temporary basis until the recalled employee is scheduled to report for work. An employee who declines recall to perform work for which he/she is classified, certified and able under this Agreement shall forfeit his/her seniority rights under this Agreement and shall be considered a quit.

ARTICLE 10 VACANCIES

- A. A vacancy shall be defined as a newly created position within a classification represented by the Association in this bargaining unit or a present position within a classification represented by the Association in this bargaining unit which position becomes vacant by reason of the permanent separation (resignation, death, discharge) of the bargaining unit member formerly in said position.
- B. All vacancies shall be posted for seven (7) workdays before being filled. The Association President shall receive a copy of all posting(s) on the same day the posting is distributed to the various work sites. Vacancies will also be posted on the District's website.

The Board shall not be required to post more than one (1) vacancy resulting from the successful bidding or transfer of a bargaining unit member to a vacant position during the regular school year.

There shall be no requirement to post vacancies, as defined above, where the position may be filled by return of a bargaining unit member from leave of absence or by recall from layoff.

- C. After the expiration of the posting period the Board may fill the position by transfer of an employee within the classification or by awarding the position to another applicant. In making the decision to award the position to an applicant, or transfer an employee within the classification the Board will consider the certification, job classification, qualifications, skills, abilities and experience of the applicants including the length of service in the Intermediate School District and other relevant factors. When the above criteria are equal, the applicant having the greatest amount of seniority will be awarded the position. The applicant selected shall be notified of his/her selection and the time and place to report for work. The decision of the Board in filling the position shall be final.
- D. Employees desiring to apply for an initial vacancy must apply using the application process designated by the District within the posting period.
- E. Employees awarded a vacancy within their present classification in accordance with the terms of this Article will be granted a five (5) work day trial period to determine:
 - 1. Ability to perform the job, and
 - 2. Desire to remain in the new job

At the close of or during the trial period, the Board may return the employee to his/her former position if he/she is unable to perform the job, in the Board's judgment. That determination shall not be grievable. The trial period shall be fifteen (15) work days where an existing employee is awarded a vacancy in another classification.

The employee may voluntarily transfer to his/her former position at any time during the trial period. During the trial period, the Board may utilize a substitute in the former position of the employee who has been awarded the vacancy.

ARTICLE 11 LEAVES OF ABSENCE

A. PAID LEAVES

1. Sick Leave

(a) All regular full-time employees covered by this Agreement shall earn one (1) sick leave day per month worked, as detailed below - not to exceed twelve (12) days per year accumulative to a maximum of two hundred and ten (210) days.

Regular full-time bargaining unit members shall be allocated five (5) of the foregoing sick leave days at the beginning of the first full month of the school year (September) and shall earn one (1) sick leave day per month worked beginning in February and concluding in June, for a total of not more than ten (10) sick leave days accruing during the school year. Employees working during the summer programming shall earn one (1) sick leave day per twenty (20) days worked, not to exceed two (2) days for the summer program interval.

If a bargaining unit member leaves employment prior to the end of a school year and has used more than one (1) sick leave day per month worked during that school year, up to and including the month of the employee's separation from the District, the District shall deduct from the wages or other remuneration owed the employee at separation the value of any such unearned sick leave day(s), computed at the employee's hourly rate for the regular number of the employee's scheduled work hours for each unearned day used. If there are insufficient funds from which to make this deduction at the time of separation, the District may pursue whatever legal remedies are available to it for the recovery of any and all amounts due for the employee's use of unearned sick leave.

- (b) Regular part-time employees will be entitled to a pro-rated amount of sick leave in accordance with the ratio between the number of hours they work per week and thirty-five (35), rounded off to the nearest whole number of days annually.
- (c) Employees will be allowed to use their sick leave entitlement only for the following reasons: personal illness or pregnancy, which disables the employee from performing services; quarantine; or illness in the immediate family (defined as spouse, child, foster-child, step-child, or grandchild living in the same household). The illness in the immediate family shall be such as to require the presence of the employee. Usage of paid sick leave for care of the immediate family shall be limited to five (5) days per year (July 1-June 30), unless otherwise approved by the Board.

Where a bargaining unit member is eligible under the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA), either the employee or the District has the right to substitute (i.e. require the use of) available sick leave for FMLA leave to the extent that sick leave may be used under this Agreement.

- (d) In order to be eligible for payment of sick leave, a bargaining unit member must notify his/her supervisor (by using the automated sick leave/attendance systems as designated by the District's sick leave procedures) of absence as soon as practicable but not later than 6:15 a.m. on the day of absence. Where a bargaining unit member becomes aware of the need for sick leave on the preceding day or evening, he/she will promptly notify his/her supervisor (by using the automated sick leave/attendance systems as designated by the District's sick leave procedure). The automated sick leave/attendance system procedures shall be provided to Bargaining Unit Members when hired and when the automated sick leave/attendance system procedures change.
- (e) The Board may require that any employee utilizing sick leave procure a doctor's certification of illness or disability for the day(s) absent beyond three (3) consecutive work days. In cases of suspected misuse or abuse of leave, a doctor's certification may be required for any sick days utilized by the employee. Where sick leave is used on the first or last reporting days of a school year or on the day(s) immediately preceding or following a school break, vacation, or holiday, doctor's certification is mandatory for the first day of absence. Unauthorized failure to obtain such certification shall constitute a sufficient basis for denial of use of sick leave and for disciplinary action in cases where abuse or misuse of leave is established.
- or mental examination by an appropriate practitioner selected by the Board for purposes of: verifying an employee's eligibility for leave under any provision of this Agreement; to evaluate fitness for duty where the Board has reasonably founded concerns related to job performance or safety; to comply with state and/or federal statutes requiring periodic examinations; or to assess an employee's fitness for return to duty. The Board shall pay the cost of any physical or mental examination required under this section.

- (g) Except as is otherwise provided in Article 8 ¶ B and in Article 13 ¶ B of this Agreement, sick leave taken in accordance with this Article shall be counted as days worked provided pay is allowed.
- (h) If it is necessary for an employee to be absent from duty due to illness or injury compensable under the Michigan Workers' Disability Compensation Act, he/she shall receive the difference between his/her net salary and the amount received as workers' compensation benefits, deductible from accumulated sick leave. (For example: if workers' compensation pays sixty percent (60%) of the net pay amount, sick leave will pay only forty percent (40%) and the employee's sick leave accumulation shall be charged .4 of a day for each day used.)

Provided, that the Board shall not be required to allow proportional use of sick days where an employee is receiving workers' compensation benefits if the employee is concurrently on FMLA leave or in the event that the Board's workers' compensation carrier determines that such sick leave payments are required to be coordinated under Section 354 of the Workers' Disability Compensation Act, MCL 418.354. In the above instances the employee shall receive only the workers' compensation benefits for which he/she is eligible.

- (i) The Board will notify all employees of their sick leave availability on payroll check stubs. It is the employee's responsibility to verify sick leave accumulation appearing on these records. Any errors must be reported to the District within ten (10) days of payroll issuance.
- 2. <u>Terminal Leave Pay</u>: Terminal leave pay shall be paid to employees who retire from the Calhoun Intermediate School District who meet the requirements for receipt of a retirement allowance under the Michigan Public School Employee's Retirement Act and who meet the "years of service" specified below. Terminal leave pay shall be paid based upon unused sick leave days with maximum days as specified below. "Years of service" shall mean years of service with the Calhoun Intermediate School District.

Years of Service

<u>Maximum Sick Leave</u> Paid Days

At least 10 years but less than 15 years: Forty days (40)

At least 15 years but less than 20 years: Fifty (50) days*

At least 20 years but less than 25 years

At least 25 years or more Sixty-five (65) days*

Eighty-Five (85) days*

*Ten (10) additional days if employee has one hundred (100) or more accumulated sick leave days at the time of retirement.

Employees hired on or after July 1, 1995 shall not be eligible for Terminal Leave Pay.

3. Personal Leave: Employees will be allowed a maximum of three (3) days annually with pay (non-cumulative) for personal leave which requires the presence of the employee and which cannot be handled during other than working hours. This leave shall not be taken on consecutive work days, on the day prior to and/or the day following a holiday or vacation period, on parent-teacher conference days, or on professional development days except with prior approval of the Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources. No more than three (3) employees shall be allowed personal leave at any one time. The employee shall notify his/her immediate supervisor at least three (3) school days in advance of intent to utilize personal leave, except in case of emergency.

With prior administrative approval, employees may be permitted to use additional personal leave days in exceptional or extenuating circumstances. Granting or denial of these days will be at the discretion of the administration and shall not be subject to the grievance procedure. If such days are granted, they will be deducted from the bargaining unit member's accumulated sick leave. If sick leave is not available, the day(s) granted will be unpaid.

All unused personal days will be converted to the employee's accumulated sick leave or, at the option of the employee, paid at eighty dollars (\$80) per unused day.

4. <u>Funeral Leave</u>: A funeral leave shall be granted with pay for a period of not to exceed three (3) days to attend each funeral of an employee's "immediate family" to include: parents; spouse; children or grandchildren; grandparents; brother; sister; mother-in-law; father-in-law; stepchild; stepparent; or member of household.

In normal situations, multiple leave days under this section must be taken contiguously. Exceptions will be allowed if burial is delayed (e.g., due to weather, family travel, etc.) or a memorial service is held at a later date. Any additional days granted for this purpose are

subject to prior administrative approval and shall be deducted from the employee's accumulated sick leave.

Up to one (1) day will be allowed for the death of an aunt, uncle, niece, nephew, sister-in-law, or brother-in-law.

5. Jury Duty or Court Appearance Leave

(a) An employee who is summoned and reports for jury duty shall be paid by the Board an amount equal to the difference between the amount of wages the employee otherwise would have normally earned by working for the Board on that day and the daily jury fee paid by the Court (not including travel allowances or reimbursements of expense), for each day on which he/she reports for or performs jury duty and on which he/she otherwise would have been scheduled to work.

This payment provision shall also apply when the employee is subpoenaed as a witness in a judicial or administrative hearing, so long as the employee and/or the Association are not adverse parties to the Board in that judicial or administrative proceeding.

(b) In order to receive payment, an employee must give the Board prior notice that he/she has been summoned for jury duty or subpoenaed as a witness, and must furnish satisfactory evidence that he/she reported for or performed such acts on the days for which he/she claims payments.

B. UNPAID LEAVE

1. Illness and Disability Leave:

- (a) Leaves of absence for periods not to exceed twelve (12) months may be granted at the discretion of the Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources or his/her designee without pay for any of the following reasons:
 - (1) Personal Illness/Disability an employee may be entitled to disability leave upon written statement from a physician. During the time of the disability, the employee may utilize (or the Board may require utilization of) sick leave benefits to the extent which it has been accrued. Upon return from leave, the employee shall be returned to his/her position held at

- the time of the disability or to a position that seniority and qualifications entitles him/her.
- (2) <u>Prolonged serious illness</u> in the immediate family (defined as spouse, parent or child).
- (b) Employees accessing leave under this section shall provide written notice of their intent to take leave at least thirty (30) days prior to the date on which leave is to commence. If the employee must begin medical treatment sooner, notice shall be given by the employee as promptly as is practicable under the circumstances.
- (c) The Board has the right to receive medical certification from the employee's health care provider regarding the necessity for personal illness/disability leave taken under this section. The employee will facilitate and cooperate in the furnishing of such information, which shall include:
 - (1) The date the illness or disability commenced and the health care provider's best medical judgment concerning the probable duration of the condition;
 - (2) Diagnosis of the illness or disability;
 - (3) A brief statement of the regimen of treatment prescribed for the condition by the health care provider (including estimated number of visits, nature, frequency and duration of treatment, including treatment by another provider of health services on referral by or order of the health care provider); and
 - (4) Indication of whether in-patient hospitalization is required.
 - (5) Either a statement that the employee is unable to perform work of any kind, or a statement that the employee is unable to perform the essential functions of the employee's position, with or without reasonable accommodation.
- (d) The Board has the right to require that a second medical opinion (at Board expense) be obtained. If that opinion differs from that of the employee's health provider, the employee and Board (in consultation with the Association, if requested by the employee) shall mutually designate a third health provider

whose opinion relative to leave eligibility or initial fitness to return to work shall be considered final and binding on the Board, the employee and the Association. The cost of this examination shall be paid by the Board.

- (e) The Board shall have the right to require recertification during the leave period and medical certification of the employee's fitness to return to duty at the expiration of the leave period.
- (f) An extension may be granted upon request of the employee to extend the leave to total maximum time not to exceed twenty-four (24) months, provided the need for the extension is certified by a physician. This extension would be at the sole discretion of the Board.

2. Personal Leave:

- (a) Subject to approval of the Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources or his/her designee, employees may be granted an unpaid personal leave of absence not to exceed twelve (12) months.
- (b) Leaves of absence shall not be granted for periods of time less than one (1) day and approved requests will be limited to one per year (July 1 June 30) per employee. In proper cases exceptions may be made with the written consent of the Association, Board and affected employee. At any time, no more than two (2) bargaining unit members may be on a leave under this section.
- (c) Leaves of absence are not to be used as an extension of vacation and/or holiday periods.
- (d) Any leave granted will be with the understanding that it is a leave of absence from the Calhoun Intermediate School District and not necessarily from a particular position. Return may be denied in the event of staff reduction.
- (e) Employees shall not be granted more than twelve (12) months of leave under this section in any five (5) year period.

3. General Conditions - Unpaid Leaves

- (a) Employees on unpaid personal leaves of absence, as defined in Section B. 2. of this Article shall retain seniority held at the time they begin the leave of absence but shall not accrue seniority while on leaves of absence taken after July 1, 1991. Employees shall not accrue sick leave, emergency leave, or personal leave entitlement while on unpaid leaves of absence.
- (b) Employees on unpaid illness/disability leaves of absence, as defined in Section B. 1. of this Article, shall retain seniority while on leaves of absences up to a maximum of twelve (12) months. Employees shall not accrue sick leave, personal leave, or vacation entitlement while on unpaid leaves of absence.
- (c) Upon return from leave under Section B (1) the employee shall be assigned to either the same position from which leave was taken or to a position for which the employee is qualified and possesses sufficient classification seniority. Compliance with the above standards shall be considered as restoration to an equivalent position. Restoration may be denied in the event of reduction in staff.
- (d) The Board and the employee agree to cooperate in scheduling return from leave at a time which minimizes disruption to the continuity of educational programming and service delivery.
- (e) The Board will continue hospital/medical, dental and vision premium contributions on behalf of an eligible employee (and eligible dependents) for one period of up to twelve (12) weeks in a rolling year for employees who have been granted an unpaid leave of absence for medical reasons due to a serious personal illness or disability or where otherwise required by the Family and Medical Leave Act.

If the employee fails to return from leave at its expiration (except in the event of the continuance, onset or recurrence of a serious health condition of the employee or other circumstances beyond the employee's control) the Board shall have the right to recover all premium payments made during the unpaid leave interval with the exception of any premium amounts allocable to day(s) of paid leave taken under this Agreement which are utilized during a period of FMLA leave. These amounts may permissibly be deducted from any wage or other payments due the employee, with any deficiency to be remitted by the employee to the Board within five (5) days of demand.

- (f) Where an employee requests intermittent leave or reduced schedule leave for personal serious illness/disability or to care for a seriously ill family member as authorized under the Family and Medical Leave Act, the Board may require that the employee transfer temporarily to an alternative position for which the employee is certified (as defined in Article 10) and qualified and which has an equivalent pay rate and benefits where the temporary transfer would better accommodate the need for recurring leave, in comparison to the employee's current assignment. Where the temporary transfer is to a part-time position, the pay rate and benefits shall be adjusted accordingly, in conformance with the other terms of this Agreement.
- (g) Intermittent leave, to the extent required by the Family and Medical Leave Act, shall be taken in intervals of not less than two (2) hours. Employees shall attempt to schedule intermittent leave as not to disrupt the continuity of services and instruction.

ARTICLE 12 WAGES

- A. Wage rates for employees in the bargaining unit are as indicated in Appendix A.
- B. When a new position in the bargaining unit is created, the Board will notify the Association of the classification and rate structure prior to its becoming effective. In the event the Association does not agree that the classification is proper, it shall be subject to negotiations. If the job is to be placed in a newly created and separate classification, the wage rate for that classification shall also be subject to negotiation. Nothing in this section shall prevent the Board from implementing an interim classification placement and/or wage rate (based upon the rates and classifications existing in this Agreement) pending the completion of negotiations.
- C. The parties recognize that academic training is one factor that can enhance the services provided by bargaining unit members. Accordingly, a Teacher Assistant or Job Coach who attains an Associate's Degree directly related to his/her assignment will have his/her hourly rate increased by forty cents (\$0.40) or who possesses a Bachelor's Degree directly related to his/her assignment will have his/her hourly rate increased by fifty cents (\$0.50).

ARTICLE 13 HOLIDAYS

- A. The following days shall be observed as paid holidays for Teacher Assistants and Job Coaches: Memorial Day, Good Friday (if school is not in session), Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, day after Thanksgiving, Christmas Eve Day, Christmas Day, New Year's Eve Day, New Years Day, Martin Luther King Day.
- B. In order for an employee to receive pay for a holiday, he/she must have worked both on the working day (as designated on the school calendar) immediately preceding the holiday and on the working day (as designated on the school calendar) immediately following the holiday.

The District may waive the above restriction in documented circumstances where the employee (or an immediate family member) is suddenly hospitalized and paid sick leave and/or unpaid FMLA leave is utilized, or in documented circumstances where funeral leave is utilized on the work day prior to, or on the work day immediately following the holiday. It is understood that such exceptions are at the discretion of the District, are not precedent setting, and that the District's refusal to grant an exception is not grievable.

- C. Holiday pay shall be at the employee's current regular daily rate.
- D. Should a holiday fall on a Saturday, Friday shall be considered as a holiday; should a holiday fall on Sunday, Monday shall be considered as the holiday.
- E. All hours worked on the above holidays shall be paid at the rate of time and one-half plus holiday pay.

ARTICLE 14 VACATION

- A. Teacher Assistants, Job Coaches and LPN's shall earn vacation entitlements in accordance with the following schedule:
 - 1. Ten (10) days per school year of regular full time employment.
 - 2. One (1) day in addition [total eleven (11) days for full program year] if a minimum of thirty (30) days is worked during extended year/summer programming. Employees shall be paid for this day instead of receiving time off.

Vacation time will be pro-rated (on the basis of a thirty-five (35) hour work week) for those employees working at least one hundred eighty (180) days per year but less than seven (7) hours per day. This excludes temporary employees and substitutes.

Vacation time is credited on a "school year" basis (September 1 - August 31) for all eligible bargaining unit members. Pro-ration will be made for employees working less than one hundred eighty (180) days on the basis of one (1) day per month worked.

Employees will not be eligible for vacation pay while in a probationary status.

- B. Vacation accrued shall be utilized as follows:
 - 1. Five (5) days during Christmas Break Five (5) days during Spring break
- C. In the event an employee leaves the employment of the CISD and has a vacation time accrued, he/she will receive pay for the accrual, except when an employee's employment is terminated with just cause or resigns in lieu of termination. An employee who has unused accrued vacation day(s) at the end of the school year will, upon written request or via email by June 1, be paid for those days by June 30.

ARTICLE 15 INSURANCE

A. Beginning July 1, 2018, or the date of implementation, whichever occurs last, to the extent allowable by law or regulation, upon proper application and acceptance for enrollment by the appropriate insurance underwriter, and/or carrier, the Board shall make contributions for medical benefit plan costs for all eligible Employees (those not receiving cash-in-lieu) and their eligible dependents (except for those employees hired after July 11, 2011, who shall be eligible for a Board contribution toward single coverage only), for the chosen insurance plans (the "Base Plan" or "Alternative Plan") in a combined monthly amount not to exceed the following, paid per eligible Employee:

For the period of January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021:

Single: \$586.99 2-Person: \$1143.33 Full Family: \$1491.03

If the health insurance premium rises on all three categories of coverage effective January 1, 2019, the Board will increase its contribution by the monthly pro-rated hard-cap increase allowed under Public Act 152 of 2011, as amended, OR Six Percent (6%); whichever is less. The Board will adjust its contributions each January 1 for the life of this agreement pursuant to the above formula.

The parties negotiated new health insurance options for the calendar year beginning January 1, 2019. The parties are now part of the MESSA Area Purchasing Agreement with school districts from Branch, Barry and Calhoun counties. Full time employees have five (5) options for health insurance. **All five options include** dental insurance, vision insurance, life insurance, and long-term disability insurance as described below. The four health insurance options are:

Plan 1: MESSA Choices #1 with Saver RX, \$1,000/\$2,000 in-network deductible, \$2,000/\$4,000 out-of-network deductible.

Plan 2: MESSA Choices #2 with a 3-Tier RX and 20% coinsurance, \$500/\$1,000 in-network deductible, \$500/\$1,000 out-of-network deductible.

Plan 3: MESSA ABC #1 with a 3-Tier RX, \$1,400/\$2,800 in-network deductible, \$2,800/\$5,600 out-of-network deductible.

Plan 4: MESSA ABC #2 with a 3-Tier RX, \$2,000/\$4,000 in-network deductible, \$4,000/\$8,000 out-of-network deductible.

Plan 5: MESSA Essentials

The following items will be included:

- Delta Dental 80/80/\$1,000; for Class I, II, and III benefits; 80/\$1,300 for Class IV benefits; two (2) cleanings per year.
- VSP3 Gold Vision Insurance
- \$70K life and AD&D
- LTD; 66 2/3 Max \$5,000; Ninety (90) calendar day modified fill

The Board shall be the policy holder of the Plans.

The Board shall pay 100% of the non-medical benefit plan costs (except for those employees hired after July 11, 2011, who shall be eligible for a Board contribution of 100% of the single coverage non-medical benefit plan costs only).

Those hired after July 11, 2011, may purchase 2-Person or Full Family coverage, but must pay the difference between the Board's contribution toward the single coverage rate, and the cost of 2-Person or Full Family coverage.

As allowed by MESSA and State/Federal law, a special open enrollment period will be held in November for those Bargaining Unit Members who wish to change between the Base and Alternative Plans. Changes in Plans shall be effective January 1 of the following year for those who enroll during November; however, the medical benefit plan coverage year shall remain July 1 through June 30 of each year regardless of enrollment choice. Bargaining Unit Members shall incur any additional external costs associated with the special open enrollment period.

The Board's medical benefit plan cost contribution shall first be applied to insurance premiums, then to any remaining medical benefit plan costs, in an amount not to exceed the monthly per employee cap listed above.

Medical benefit plan costs shall include contributions to insurance premiums, as well as any payments already made, or that will be made, by the Board during the "medical benefit plan coverage year" toward Board reimbursement of co-pays, deductibles, or payments into health reimbursement arrangements, health savings accounts, flexible spending accounts, or similar accounts used for health care costs, insurance related taxes, fees, or PPACA related penalties, insurance agent/company commissions, and any costs required to be accounted for under Public Act 152 of 2011, as amended (collectively, excluding the insurance premiums, the "Supplementary Payments"). The priority of Supplemental Payments which are paid from the Board's remaining medical benefit plan cost contribution, if any remains after paying premiums, shall first be to any Health Savings Accounts related directly to the MESSA products above (Health Equity HSA for those taking MESSA's ABC Plan 1) in pro-rated monthly payments, then to any other payments as specifically agreed upon between the Board and Association.

If the total value of the Supplementary Payments already made, and/or that will be made, during the "medical benefit plan coverage year" exceeds the aggregate monthly per employee Board medical benefit plan contribution, the Board shall reduce the payments that will be made during the "medical benefit plan coverage year" toward the Supplementary Payments in an amount necessary to avoid exceeding the aggregate monthly per employee Board medical benefit plan contribution. The Board may use its discretion in determining which future Supplementary Payments to reduce, and further, may deduct from employee wages any past Supplementary Payments already made which are necessary to comply with Public Act 152 of 2011 (PA 152) and the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act ("PPACA").

The Base and Alternative Plans shall conform to all requirements of the PPACA and PA 152; including any requirements necessary to avoid penalties, taxes, fees, or other liabilities for the Board; the Board is specifically authorized to make any adjustments to this Article necessary to fully comply with the PPACA and PA 152, including to avoid any penalties, taxes, fees, or other liabilities chargeable to the Board. Any changes made shall be the minimum necessary to avoid penalties, taxes, fees, or other liabilities under PA 152 or the PPACA. The Board shall consult with the Association prior to making any changes, and shall choose a MESSA option if one exists which addresses the concern which triggered the pending penalty, tax, fee, or other liability.

All Board contributions and payments, including, but not limited to, Supplemental Payments, shall comply with all applicable state and federal laws or become void.

B. For those eligible employees choosing to forego health insurance and instead choose PAK B benefits, the Board shall pay one hundred percent (100%) of the non-health insurance benefits for PAK B.

PAK B per MESSA quote number 327051:

- Delta Dental 80/80/\$1,000; for Class I, II, and III benefits; 80/\$1,300 for Class IV benefits; two (2) cleanings per year.
- VSP3 Gold Vision Insurance.
- \$70K life and AD&D.
- LTD; 66 2/3 Max \$5,000; Ninety (90) calendar day modified fill.
- C. Any necessary amounts beyond the Board's contribution, as specified above, which are required to maintain the selected coverage(s) are the responsibility of the Employee and shall be payroll deducted or, when payroll does not cover the deduction, paid directly by the individual Employee. To the extent allowable by law or regulation, the Board will payroll deduct in two equal payments per month, prorated to be paid in the months of September through May. The Parties recognize that insurance payments are made on a 12 month cycle, and that pro-rated Employee payments on a 9 month cycle require pre-payment of costs by the Board, to be recouped during the Employees' 9 month cycle. Any pre-payment amounts are subject to recoupment using the "Insurance Off-Set" as more fully detailed in Appendix A.

To the extent allowable by law or regulation, the Employee may sign an agreement authorizing that any such amounts be payroll deducted through the Board's Section 125 Plan. If making direct payment, the Employee shall present payment directly on the 1st of each month prior to the date at which the payment becomes due. Failure of an Employee to pay their portion of the costs shall alleviate the Board of any duty to pay the Monthly Contribution. The Board shall have the right to make deduction of any amounts due from the Employee's wages, and shall be held harmless from any liability arising from the deduction.

D. Employees who have access to another CISD Employee's Board funded insurance shall not be eligible for separate Board provided health insurance, but must instead take PAK B benefits. Exceptions shall be made for employees who are less than twenty-six (26) years of age and who are covered by a parent's PPACA compliant insurance, but have dependents of their own. Those individuals may take the Board funded

- insurance. During open enrollment, Employees electing health care coverage will sign a statement that they are complying with this paragraph.
- E. Unless otherwise noted within this Agreement, or as required by law or regulation, Employees on unpaid leave status or who have exhausted leave allowed under this Agreement are financially responsible for the Board's portion of insurance contributions for those days.
- F. Employees who are eligible for Board paid medical benefit plan contributions may make a written waiver of that coverage and instead elect to receive PAK B benefits and cash-in-lieu of health benefits in the amount of one hundred ten dollars (\$110) per month (less applicable taxes) in accordance with the District's Section 125 Plan, as established and administered by the District. This amount will be increased to one hundred fifty dollars (\$150) per month provided that eight (8) or more bargaining unit members who are eligible for Board paid medical coverage waive such coverage, as described above. This amount will increase to one hundred seventy-five dollars (\$175) per month if ten (10) or more eligible bargaining unit members waive medical coverage (as described above), and to four hundred dollars (\$400) per month if twelve (12) or more eligible bargaining unit members waive medical coverage. Employees selecting the cash or Non-taxable option must provide proof of other coverage that meets the Affordable Care Act requirements on affordability and coverage. The employee must also sign an affidavit stating that they are not forgoing the group health insurance options offered her and instead purchasing insurance through the health insurance exchange.

At the Board's discretion, the Employee may direct all or a portion of the above amount to a tax-sheltered annuity approved by the Board through a separate written voluntary and elective contribution, as allowed by law or regulation.

- G. Employees are hereby advised that they may have a right pursuant to Section 4438 of the Insurance Code of 1956, MCL 500.4438, to convert their life insurance policy, and that the Employee must make application to the life insurance carrier within thirty-one (31) days of any termination of their employment status.
- H. To the extent permitted by law or regulation, and/or insurer's policies, Board-paid insurance contributions and/or cash in lieu payments shall continue as long as the Employee is in a pay status, but terminate at the end of the month during which the Employee ceases to be in a pay status, except as is otherwise provided herein or by law or regulation. Employees may continue the coverage at their own expense to the extent permitted by law or regulation.

- I. If PA 152 is repealed, the Board reserves the right to change the identity of the insurance carrier, policyholder, underwriter, or third-party administrator for any and all of the above coverages upon advance notice to the Association and provided that comparable or better benefits are maintained. The Board agrees not to change the identity of the insurance carrier, policyholder, underwriter, or third-party administrator if the change will result in higher insurance premiums or higher copays/deductibles. The Board shall not be required to remit premiums for any insurance coverages on behalf of a bargaining unit member if enrollment or coverage is denied by the insurance underwriter, carrier, policyholder or third-party administrator.
- J. The terms of any insurance contract or policy issued by an insurance underwriter, carrier, policyholder or third-party administrator shall be controlling as to all matters concerning benefits, eligibility, coverage, termination of coverage, and other related matters. The Employee is responsible for assuring completion of all forms and documents required for his/her participation in the above-described insurance programs. Failure to complete the forms shall alleviate the Board of any requirements to fund insurance on behalf of that individual. The Board, by payment of its share of the medical benefit plan contributions indicated above, shall be relieved from any and all liability with respect to insurance benefits. Such matters shall be excluded from the scope of the grievance procedure, except the Board's failure to remit contractual premium amounts required of it (unless the failure to remit contractual premium amounts is pursuant to Public Act 54 of 2011 or the requirements of this Article).
- K. Changes in family status shall be reported by the Employee to the Board within thirty (30) days of such change. The Employee shall be responsible for any overpayment made by the Board on his/her behalf for failure to comply with this paragraph, and the Board is specifically authorized to deduct any such amounts from future wages.
- L. Unless otherwise delineated by law or regulation or the terms of the policy then in effect, eligible Employees shall receive insurance as of the 90th calendar day since hire. Those employees opting to take cash-in-lieu shall not be eligible for Board paid medical benefit plan contributions. An Employee shall be eligible for Board paid medical benefit plan contributions or cash-in-lieu up to the maximum amounts allowed in this Article if the Employee is employed on a full-time basis as defined by the PPACA (currently, working an average of thirty [30] hours or more per week in the District), or thirty-five (35) hours or more per week in the District, whichever is less.
- M. Part-time bargaining unit members who work a minimum of twenty (20) hours per week on a regularly scheduled basis during the school year shall

be entitled to one-half (50%) of the Board contributions made on their behalf by the Board, toward the coverages specified in ¶A of this Article. The Bargaining Unit Member electing such coverage is responsible for payment of the remaining amounts. The Board shall have the right to make deduction of such amounts from the bargaining unit member's wages.

N. The "medical benefit plan coverage year" shall run from January 1 to December 31.

ARTICLE 16 WORKING HOURS/CONDITIONS

- A. The Board specifically reserves the right to schedule the work day, the work week, and the work year in accordance with program needs. Nothing in this Article shall be construed as a guarantee of a specific number of working hours per day or per week or as a limitation upon the Board's right to schedule additional hours.
- B. Employees shall normally report to work fifteen (15) minutes prior to their students' start time (defined as the time students must be present and in their seats), and leave fifteen minutes after their students' end time (defined as the time students are dismissed from their seats at the end of the school day), unless otherwise scheduled or otherwise directed by their respective special education supervisor.
- C. Regular daily working hours shall begin not earlier than 7 a.m. and end not later than 7 p.m. The Board reserves the right to change schedules when program or transportation needs require it. In this event, a minimum of three (3) working days notice will be given.
- D. Employees who are scheduled to work at least five (5) hours daily will be allowed one, ten (10) minute paid work break daily. Employees working at least seven (7) hours per day will be considered full time and will be allowed a second ten (10) minute paid daily work break. Work breaks will be scheduled by the special education supervisor, taking into consideration program needs. Work breaks may not be combined and shall not be cumulative.
- E. The work day for those bargaining unit members scheduled to work at least seven (7) hours daily shall include a lunch period of thirty (30) minutes duration to be scheduled by the special education supervisor

between 11 a.m. and 1 p.m. each day. Where the bargaining unit member is required to remain in their assigned facility for purposes of responding to work requirements during the lunch period, the thirty (30) minute interval shall be paid at the bargaining unit member's regular rate. During this interval Teacher Assistants are subject to primary direction by the teacher to whom they are assigned but also remain under the general supervisory authority of the administration. Where the bargaining unit member is not required to respond to work requirements and remains in their assigned facility during the lunch period, the thirty (30) minute interval shall be unpaid.

F. Scheduled days and hours of student instruction which are not held because of conditions not within the control of school authorities, such as inclement weather, fire, epidemics, mechanical breakdowns, or health conditions (as defined by city, county, or state health authorities) will be rescheduled as necessary to ensure instruction as prescribed by Michigan law. Employees shall be excused from reporting for school on those days and hours which are cancelled due to the above conditions.

Employees will receive their regular hourly rate for days and hours that are cancelled but shall work on the rescheduled days and hours with no additional compensation except that employees who, with administrative approval, worked on cancelled days shall be paid for work performed on rescheduled days if they are required to work those days.

If school is cancelled, due to the above conditions, after buses have departed to pick up pupils, employees may be required to report and remain for all or a portion of their regularly scheduled hours and shall be paid for time worked as well as for any rescheduled days/hours attributable to the cancellation of student instruction time on that day.

The parties agree that this contract provision has been negotiated to comply with the provisions of the Revised School Code and the State School Aid Act to ensure that the District will incur no loss of state aid. Further, the parties recognize the District's obligation to comply with requirements set forth by the State Board of Education respecting the number of "student instruction" days and hours, as defined by that agency. In addition to any requirements of either the Revised School Code and/or the State School Aid Act to receive full state aid, the parties agree to reschedule lost days and hours of student instruction (attributable to the above conditions) to ensure the minimum number of instructional days and hours required by the Department of Education for both regular school year and extended programs (e.g. 230 day programs).

Employees will follow the inclement weather cancellation and make-up schedule of the K-12 or ISD facility where their assigned office is located.

- Each employee shall be notified of his/her "assigned" office, for inclement weather purposes, at the beginning of the school year.
- G. At the discretion of the administration, bargaining unit members may be required to attend professional and other in-service meetings which are scheduled outside of regular work hours or on days when students are not in attendance. Bargaining unit members required to attend such meetings will be paid at their regular rate. Bargaining unit members will be required to attend meetings scheduled during regular working hours as directed. The Board shall seek to provide changes to Board Policy to all bargaining unit members via email as soon as practicable.
- Η. Bargaining unit members will be scheduled to work on all student days in their program of assignment, whether that program is directly operated by CISD, a constituent school district, or another entity with which CISD contracts to provide paraprofessional and instructional support services. Paraprofessionals will be scheduled to work on all teacher obligation days designated on the CISD calendar, whether or not students are in attendance. Teacher Assistants/Job Coaches will likewise be scheduled to work on all teacher obligation days designated on the CISD calendar with the exception of: (1) parent/teacher conference days which are not designated, in advance, as either optional or mandatory work days; or (2) circumstances where constituent district calendars necessitate a different designation of work days in order to accommodate local program needs; or (3) when the administration determines that the Teacher Assistant/Job Coach is not otherwise required to work on a noninstructional day.
- I. The Board and the Association both recognize their responsibilities under Federal, State, and Local laws pertaining to fair employment practices. Accordingly, both parties reaffirm by this Agreement their commitment not to discriminate against any person or persons because of race, creed, color, religion, sex, age, disability, or national origin. The Board and Association additionally recognize that their commitment to non-discrimination may require reasonable accommodation to employee and accordingly agree to jointly confer with any employee making such a request. Where necessary to make a reasonable accommodation, the parties shall consider waiving the requirements and/or provisions of this Agreement.
- J. If a bargaining unit member contracts head lice as a result of his/her occupational contact with students, the Board will reimburse the employee for the cost of non-prescription medications which are necessary to respond to that condition. This reimbursement will be made only if there is adequate proof that the bargaining unit member did in fact contract the

head lice as a result of contact with pupils as part of his/her duties and the bargaining unit member submits a receipt (or other acceptable verification of purchase) to the Board within ten (10) work days of the purchase of the non-prescription medication for which reimbursement is being sought. The District agrees to provide bins in all classrooms to deal with issues related to bed bugs. Bins will be provided no later than September 30, 2016.

- K. Bargaining unit members who are eligible for overtime under the Fair Labor Standards Act or the Michigan Minimum Wage Act shall be compensated at one and one-half (1½) times their regular hourly rate for all hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours worked in a work week. Paid absences or other paid or unpaid leave under this Agreement shall not be considered as time worked for the purpose of overtime computation or eligibility. All overtime must have prior administrative approval.
- L. As a condition of continued employment, Teacher Assistants and Job Coaches hired after January 8, 2007 who do not otherwise meet the standards established by the Michigan Department of Education for a highly qualified paraprofessional must achieve by the completion of their probationary period a score of proficient on an assessment designated by the Michigan Department of Education as satisfying those standards.

ARTICLE 17 EMPLOYEE EVALUATION

- A. The purpose of employee evaluation is to maintain and improve the quality of employee performance and, thus, the quality of services being delivered to students.
- B. The evaluation of each bargaining unit member will be based upon observation and investigation of the employee's work performance, the employee's adherence to work requirements and standards, his/her ability to competently and successfully carry out his/her position responsibilities and the employee's disciplinary record.
- C. The evaluation shall include input from the employee's supervising classroom teacher (where applicable). Teacher input regarding specific instances shall not be included in the evaluation unless the information forming the basis of the input has been shared with the employee within ten (10) working days from when the teacher became aware of the information. The evaluation shall be completed by an administrator or supervisory employee designated by CISD.

D. Evaluations shall be in writing and shall be provided to the bargaining unit member at least once every twenty-four (24) months after completion of their probationary period. Probationary bargaining unit members will be evaluated at least once during the probationary period. The bargaining unit member shall sign for receipt of the evaluation.

Either the bargaining unit member or the evaluator shall have the right to call for an evaluation conference to review the written evaluation. If the bargaining unit member disagrees with the evaluation, he/she shall submit a written response within ten (10) days after receiving a copy of the evaluation. That response will be attached to the personnel file copy of the evaluation in question.

If an evaluator believes that a bargaining unit member is doing unsatisfactory work, the reasons for the conclusion shall be communicated to the bargaining unit member in the evaluation.

Where a bargaining unit member has completed the probationary period and receives an unsatisfactory evaluation, a plan of assistance will be developed by the evaluator, in consultation with the employee being evaluated. The evaluator within the plan of assistance shall also establish objectives for performance improvement as well as a time line for performance remediation.

- E. All written evaluations (as well as any employee responses thereto) shall become a part of the bargaining unit member's personnel file.
- F. Each employee's evaluation shall conclude at the conclusion of the appraisal form the statement: "Considering all factors, the work of this employee is (check one):

Satisfactory
Satisfactory with improvement needed in specified performance areas
Unsatisfactory

ARTICLE 18 WAIVER

The parties acknowledge that, during the negotiations which resulted in this Agreement, each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any subject or matter not removed by law from the area of collective bargaining and that the understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in this Agreement. Therefore, the Board and the Association for the life of this Agreement voluntarily and unqualifiedly waive the right, and each agrees that

the other shall not be obligated to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or matter referred to or covered in this Agreement or with respect to any subject or matter which was negotiated in the formation of this Agreement but upon which no agreement was reached. Matters of common concern may be subject to negotiation during the period of this Agreement upon the request and mutual agreement of both parties.

ARTICLE 19 EXTENT AND EFFECT OF AGREEMENT

- A. This Agreement supersedes and cancels all previous agreements, verbal or written or based on alleged past practices, between the Board and the Association and constitutes the entire agreement between the parties.
 - No further agreement shall be binding on either the Board or the Association until it has been put in writing and signed by both the Board and the Association as either an amendment to this Agreement or a letter of understanding signed by both parties.
- B. If any part of this Agreement is rendered or declared illegal by legislation or by a Court or administrative agency of competent jurisdiction, such term or provision shall become invalid and unenforceable, but such invalidity and unenforceability shall not impair or affect any other term or provision of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 20 CONTINUITY OF OPERATION

The Association agrees that neither it nor the employees shall authorize, sanction, condone, engage in or acquiesce in any strike. Strike shall be defined to include slow downs, stoppages, sit-ins, boycotts, work stoppages of any kind, the concerted failure to report for duty, the willful absence from one's position or assignment, or abstinence in whole or in part from the full, faithful and proper performance of one's assigned duties, or the improper influencing or coercing of a change in the conditions, compensation, or the rights, privileges, or obligations of employment, and any other connected or concerted activities having the effect of interrupting work or interference of any kind whatsoever with the operation of any facilities of the ISD, its constituent district's or entities with which the ISD has service agreements or arrangements.

ARTICLE 21 MISCELLANEOUS

- A. The Board agrees to provide each bargaining unit member with a copy of this Agreement.
- B. The Board will provide bulletin board space at each building it owns where bargaining unit members work which may be used by the Association for posting notices or other material pertaining to union business.
- C. Bargaining Unit Members will be permitted to utilize the District's e-mail and internet services for purposes of communicating with the Association's membership regarding business of the Association. This privilege shall be subject to the District's use policies and user agreements, and further shall not violate the Michigan Campaign Finance Act, MCL 169.201, et. seq. Association officials will not engage in the above activities during work time.
- D. Teacher Assistants who are involuntarily transferred in their regular school-year assignment and who, as a result of that transfer, have an increased daily commute of ten (10) minutes or more (round trip) will receive a one-time transitional stipend in the amount of \$100 (less amounts required to be deducted by law).
- E. Pursuant to the requirements contained within MCL 423.215, if an emergency manager is appointed under the local government and school district fiscal accountability act, 2011 PA 4, MCL 141.1501 to 141.1531 (now 2012 PA 436), the emergency manager may reject, modify, or terminate this collective bargaining agreement as provided in the local government and school district fiscal accountability act, 2011 PA 4, MCL 141.1501 to 141.1531 (now 2012 PA 436). This clause is included in this Agreement because it is legally required by state law. The Association reserves all rights to assert that the statute is unenforceable.
- F. Bargaining Unit Members will not be required to pay for preapproved admissions fees associated with field trips and outings.
- G. The Parties recognize that the District is responsible for delivery of related special education services to eligible students, including the administration of medication. Medication shall be administered in accordance with Section 1178 of the Revised School Code and related applicable mandatory sections of the Health Code.

H. The parties recognize the need to cover classrooms when teachers are absent, and the difficulty in securing substitute teachers. To address this concern, the Board shall have the right to place bargaining unit members in an acting assignment to serve as a substitute teacher. Employees serving in this capacity remain members of the bargaining unit and retain all rights associated with membership in the unit. An employee selected for acting assignment must be eligible to acquire a substitute teacher permit. The District will apply and pay for the permit on behalf of the employee. While in the acting assignment, employees will perform the normal duties of a substitute teacher, including, but not limited to: daily lesson plans, discussions with parents, conferences, data input for REEDS and IEP's. The employee will not be responsible to create or draft REEDS or IEP's. Employees serving in an acting assignment will receive a stipend of twenty-five dollars (\$25) for each half-day and fifty (\$50) for each full day. The District will pay the stipend when a Supervisor designates the employee as being the substitute teacher in the classroom.

ARTICLE 22 APPENDICES

The following Appendices are incorporated and are to be considered part of this Agreement.

Appendix A - Wage Schedule Appendix B - Classifications Appendix C - Grievance Form

ARTICLE 23 TERM OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall become effective on July 1, 2021 or upon ratification by the Board and the Association (whichever comes last) and shall continue in full force and effect until June 30, 2024, when it shall terminate. This Agreement shall not be extended except by written and signed agreement between the parties.

on the day of, 2021.	caused this instrument to be executed
FOR THE BOARD	FOR THE ASSOCIATION
Russ Claggett	Ross Williams
Assistant Superintendent – Human Resources	CIESPA President
Date	Date
Kori Rafferty Assistant Superintendent – Finance & Operations	SandyPaesens MEA UniServ Director
Date	Date

APPENDIX A WAGE SCHEDULE

Beginning with the 2018 – 2021 collective bargaining agreement, all wage adjustments will occur on the first pay period of August.

Paraprofessionals and LPN:

There shall be a two percent (2.0%) wage adjustment to the 2020-2021 wage schedule for 2021-2022; a two percent (2.0%) wage adjustment to the 2021-2022 wage schedule for 2022-2023; a two percent (2.0%) wage adjustment to the 2022-2023 wage schedule for 2023-2024. The step structure is changed to steps 1-9, effective August 2021.

Job Coach:

Job Coach is a new classification, effective with the 2018-2021 collective bargaining agreement. There shall be a two percent (2.0%) wage adjustment to the 2020-2021 wage schedule for 2021-2022; a two percent (2.0%) wage adjustment to the 2021-2022 wage schedule for 2022-2023; a two percent (2.0%) wage adjustment to the 2022-2023 wage schedule for 2023-2024.

Teacher Assistants:

There shall be no percentage adjustment to the 2021-2022 wage schedule. The parties negotiated a modification to steps for this classification. The adjusted steps are set forth in the wage schedule (below). There shall be a two percent (2.0%) wage adjustment to the 2021-2022 wage schedule for 2022-2023; a two percent (2.0%) wage adjustment to the 2022-2023 wage schedule for 2023-2024. The step structure is changed to steps 1-5, effective August 2021.

The Board will pay one step/lane in accordance with all applicable laws each school year during the life of this agreement. There shall be no retroactivity of wages, steps, or lanes.

Teacher Assistants			
Year	2021-22	2022-23	2023-24
1	\$13.70	\$13.97	\$14.25
2	\$14.20	\$14.49	\$14.78
3	\$14.70	\$14.99	\$15.29
4	\$15.20	\$15.50	\$15.81
5	\$15.70	\$16.01	\$16.33

Paraprofessionals			
Year	2021-22	2022-23	2023-24
1	\$23.49	\$23.96	\$24.44
2	\$24.28	\$24.77	\$25.27
3	\$25.06	\$25.56	\$26.07
4	\$25.93	\$26.45	\$26.98
5	\$26.82	\$27.36	\$27.91
6	\$27.86	\$28.42	\$28.99
7	\$28.39	\$28.96	\$29.54
8	\$28.66	\$29.33	\$29.81
9	\$28.94	\$29.52	\$30.11

LPN/Health Care Nurse			
Year	2021-22	2022-23	2023-24
1	\$17.44	\$17.79	\$18.15
2	\$18.06	\$18.42	\$18.79
3	\$18.72	\$19.09	\$19.47
4	\$19.39	\$19.78	\$20.18
5	\$20.06	\$20.46	\$20.87
6	\$21.08	\$21.50	\$21.93
7	\$21.60	\$22.03	\$22.47
8	\$21.89	\$22.33	\$22.78
9	\$22.16	\$22.60	\$23.05

TST Job Coach			
Year	2021-22	2022-23	2023-24
1	\$13.93	\$14.07	\$14.21
2	\$14.18	\$14.32	\$14.46
3	\$14.43	\$14.57	\$14.72
4	\$14.68	\$14.83	\$14.98
5	\$14.93	\$15.08	\$15.23
6	\$15.18	\$15.33	\$15.48
7	\$15.43	\$15.58	\$15.74
8	\$15.68	\$15.84	\$16.00
9	\$15.93	\$16.09	\$16.25

- 1. <u>Schedule Placement</u> A probationary employee starts at the beginning wage (Step 1) of the appropriate wage schedule. The District, at its discretion, may hire at step 2 based on experience. Following successful completion of the probationary period, employees in the Paraprofessional and LPN/Health Care Nurse classifications will move to the succeeding step on the wage schedule.
- 2. <u>Advancement on the Schedule</u> Movement to subsequent steps on the wage schedule will be annually on the anniversary of the last step increase provided that the employee has been in continuous employment as a member of the bargaining unit since the last step increase. "Continuous employment" is defined as working at least one hundred twenty (120) days since the last step increase.
- 3. <u>Attendance Incentive</u> Bargaining unit members will be eligible to receive an attendance incentive, payable in the last paycheck in July, based upon their sick leave utilization during the school year (July 1 June 30), as outlined below:
 - a. \$300 if two (2) or less sick days are used.
 - b. \$150 if three (3) sick days are used.

Bargaining unit members using more than three (3) sick leave days under Article 12 ¶A.1. of this Agreement are ineligible to receive the attendance incentive unless the disqualification involves sick leave days taken by an otherwise eligible bargaining unit member under the Family Medical Leave Act.

4.

CLASSIFICATIONS

- 1. The following positions are within the single <u>Teacher Assistant</u> seniority and wage classification under this Agreement.
 - Autism Spectrum Disorder
 - Severe Multiple Impairment
 - Early Childhood Special Education
 - Severe Cognitive Impairment
 - Cognitive Impairment
- 2. The following separate seniority and wage classifications are established for <u>Paraprofessional</u> employees under this Agreement.
 - Occupational Therapy Assistant

- Physical Therapy Assistant
- 3. LPN is also a separate seniority and wage classification under this Agreement.
- 4. Job Coach is also a separate seniority and wage classification under this agreement.

APPENDIX C CIESPA GRIEVANCE FORM

	Grievance No	
Name of Grievant	 Date Filed	
Work Location	Building Assignment	
Date Grievance Occurred		
Nature of Grievance		
Contract Article(s) Alleged to 1	be violated	
Relief Sought		
Signature of Grievant(s)	 Date	
Digital of discounting	Date	

STEP 1 (Immediate Supervisor)

Date Received by Supervisor			
Disposition by Supervisor			
Signature	Date		
Digitature	Bate		
Position of Employee/Association	1		
1 5 ,			
Signature	Date		
CORD O (Companies to a doub)			
STEP 2 (Superintendent)			
Date Received by Superintenden	t or Designee		
Signature	Date		

Position of Employee/Association		
Signature	Date	
STEP 3 (Board of Education)		
Date Submitted to Board of Education _		
Disposition by Board		
Signature	Date	
Position of Association		
Signature	Date	

STEP 4 - Arbitration	
Date Appealed to Arbitration	
Date Submitted to Arbitrator _	
Signature	Date

ADDENDUM TO CIESPA AND CIEA COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENTS

Representatives of CIESPA, CIEA and CISD administration met on Wednesday, May 8th at the Doris Klaussen Developmental Center, regarding possible solutions to providing classroom coverage at DKDC when teachers are absent.

It was agreed by all parties that:

- 1. The administration will continue to make every effort to secure substitutes for classroom coverage when needed.
- 2. If a teacher is absent and a substitute teacher cannot be secured, another teacher will be "assigned" to be available if needed.
- 3. DKDC administration will inform the classroom(s) who the "assigned" teacher is when a substitute teacher cannot be secured.

FOR THE BOARD	FOR THE ASSOCIATION (CIESPA)
/s/ Roger LaBonte	/s/ Jean Brown
Date:	Date: <u>09/17/97</u>
/s/ Mary Ellen Currie	/s/ Thomas E. Chisholm
Date: <u>09/24/97</u>	Date: <u>09/17/97</u>
	FOR THE ASSOCIATION (CIEA)
	/s/ William H. Musolf
	Date: <u>09/24/97</u>

LETTER OF AGREEMENT Between

CALHOUN INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL DISTRICT And

SOUTH CENTRAL UNIFIED BARGAINING ASSOCIATION/CIESPA & CIEA

A bargaining unit member who is injured through an assault committed by a student during the course of his/her employment and who is seen for that condition by a health care provider designated by the District shall be excused from work without loss of pay or charge to accumulated sick leave for a maximum of two (2) days per school year.

FOR THE BOARD	FOR THE ASSOCIATION
I brane Lingung	Callere Harvey
Date 0	11-24-08 Date
Municula Gueri	Klynith Lecle
//- 20 - 08 Date	12-S-08 Date

LETTER OF AGREEMENT

Between

CALHOUN INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL DISTRICT And

SOUTH CENTRAL UNIFIED BARGAINING ASSOCIATION/CIESPA & CIEA

The Board and the Association recognize the importance of employee attendance and acknowledge their respective commitment to avoidance of leave abuse or excessive use of leave. To further these objectives, the parties will confer periodically during the term of this Agreement on the extent of absences in the bargaining unit, absence patterns and measures that the parties could adopt to promote attendance and reduce absenteeism.

FOR THE BOARD	FOR THE ASSOCIATION
1 leone Linger	Carlene Harray
Low . 20, 2008 Date	11-24-08 Date
Mary Ellen Curici	Knneth Lule
//-20-08 Date	12-5-08 Date

"Temporary", 2

Absenteeism, 2

Advancement on the Schedule, 44

Agreement, 2

Appendices, 2, 42

APPENDICES. 42

arbitration, 8, 9

ARBITRATION, 8

Association Representatives, 3, 4, 13

Association Rights and

Responsibilities, 2

Attendance Incentive, 45

Board Rights, 2

BOARD RIGHTS, 4

Certification, 1, 15

CIESPA Grievance Form, 2

Classifications, 2, 42

CLASSIFICATIONS, 46

Continuity of Operation, 2

CONTINUITY OF OPERATION, 40

disability, 19, 22, 23, 25, 26, 37

Discharge and Disciplinary Action, 2

Disciplinary action, 11

Employee Evaluation, 2

EMPLOYEE EVALUATION, 38

Extent and Effect of Agreement, 2

EXTENT AND EFFECT OF

AGREEMENT. 40

Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA,

18

<u>Funeral Leave</u>, 21

General Conditions, 24

GRIEVANCE FORM, 47

Grievance Procedure, 2, 10, 11

GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE, 6

Holidays, 2

HOLIDAYS, 27

Illness and Disability Leave, 22

in-service training, 5

Insurance, 2

INSURANCE. 29

Jury Duty or Court Appearance

Leave, 21

Layoff and Recall, 2

LAYOFF AND RECALL, 14

Leaves of Absence, 2

LEAVES OF ABSENCE, 17

Longevity, 45

Miscellaneous, 2

MISCELLANEOUS, 41

Personal Illness/Disability, 22

Personal Leave, 20, 24

probationary period, 10, 12, 38, 39, 44

Prolonged serious illness, 22

PURPOSE AND INTENT, 1

Recognition, 2

Schedule Placement, 44

seniority, 2, 10, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 22, 24,

25, 46

Seniority, 2, 12, 13, 15

Sick Leave, 17, 20

Special Conference Meetings, 2

Substitutes, 2

Term of Agreement, 2

TERM OF AGREEMENT, 42

Terminal Leave Pay, 20

UNPAID LEAVE, 22

Vacancies, 2, 16

VACANCIES. 16

Vacation, 2, 28

VACATION, 28

Wage Schedule, 2, 42, 45

Wages, 2

WAGES, 26

Waiver, 2

WAIVER, 39

Working Hours/Conditions, 2

WORKING HOURS/CONDITIONS, 35